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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Establishment of an essential worker home ownership incentive program 

Minutes: Attachments 

Chairman Klein: Called the committee to order. 

Senator Bekkedahl: Written testimony, attachment #1 . In support. (:42-3:07) 

Chairman Klein: Said that he visited with Senator Holmberg about the appropriation . We 
will look at the policy portion and Senator Holmberg would like the bill as soon as possible 
as they are looking at the Housing Finance Agency budget and how this would meld together. 
What I am saying is the sooner the better on the amendments. 

Senator Bekkedahl: Said he had an email from Jolene Kline, see attachment #2. She has 
another statute that she will be bringing up and has neutral testimony. 

Representative Hatlestad: Written testimony, see attachment #3. (4:14-7:10) 

Senator Campbell: With the limited dollars in this fund and it looks like there could possibly 
be less and it was designed for the multi-family units. Do you think it is right to go to the home 
ownership to fund this because you know you will be eliminating some people in multi-family? 
I have reservations, it would be nice to have everybody own a home but to jump on a shortage 
of funds to go to that route makes me think, is that the right thing to do with shorting multi
family. My second question to this is right now we have multi-family units that are overbuilt, 
especially in your area. The occupancy rate is pretty tough and they are privately funded and 
rental charges are 2 to 3,000 a door. Do you think it will come down enough that it would take 
the place of some of these multi-family people that are essential workers that are living there 
that it will be affordable? 

Representative Hatlestad: I think the rents are coming down, some have come down 
substantially and I think we are going to see more competition for occupancy. I think it is 
going to open up some opportunities. What we see for the essential worker, if we can get 
them into an individual home we have a greater chance of keeping them there and they are 
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less likely to move. We don't want to short the multi-family lower income group, that wouldn't 
work for us but at the same time we want to keep that essential worker and we think this will 
be one way to do it. 

Joan Mainwaring, Mortgage Broker, American State Bank & Trust CO.: Written 
testimony, see attachment #4. (10:00-17:00) 

Senator Casper: First in reading the language of the bill, if the total appropriation that was 
going to go to the Housing Incentive Fund was only going to equal 4 million or 6 million 
dollars, would this fund then get the first 4 million? And then I am wondering not being familiar 
with the eight regions, how would that play out? 

Chairman Klein: In the last years the issues have been western North Dakota and trying to 
provide affordable housing for all essential workers, is that why we expanded it border to 
border? 

Joan Mainwaring: We think after looking at it, that there is a need state wide. Every 
department has grown and everyone has a need to hire on new people and they are recruiting 
from outside of North Dakota. There is a need for money in all eight jurisdictions. (19:18-
20:22) 

Senator Burckhard: Asked what someone making 55,000 to 60,000 dollars could afford in 
payments. 

Joan Mainwaring: We are trying to keep their payments at 25%. That would be base pay, 
not including overtime which could go away. 

Senator Burckhard: The average price of a house seven or eight years ago was 65,000 
and now it is 265,000, is that true? 

Joan Mainwaring: And today for a 1,000 square foot house with a basement it will be 225 
to 250,000 in most areas of Williston and those are houses built in the 1950's or 60's. 

Chairman Klein: Asked how far 500,000 would stretch. 

Joan Mainwaring: We are hoping ten to twenty families. There will be a maximum, around 
twenty-five thousand per, which will be up to HFA to figure out what the appropriate maximum 
will be. 

Chairman Klein: We are going to rely on the Housing Finance to be the gate keeper? 

Joan Mainwaring: Absolutely. 

David Peterson, Captain with the Williston Police Department: In support. I have been 
in law enforcement for eighteen years and I am serving the community in the capacity of the 
Police Department. We have fifty sworn officers and we have a 32 to 33% of home ownership 
in our department but the majority of that home ownership comes from the upper end of our 
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department. The line staff which we have to fight to keep, it's a lower ratio. Home ownership 
translates into employee retention in our career field. (23:00-27:08) 

Jason Catrambone, Chief Captain for the City of Williston and Board Member for the 
North Dakota Fire Chiefs Association: In support. Said the bill 2234 has many positives 
for them. As a chief one of his major duties is recruitment and retention . It is a large and 
consistent part of the job in their area. Giving essential workers an opportunity to become 
home owners and to become an integrated part of the community is a great thing for them. 
Currently most of his staff live in apartments. They have hired from Alaska to Florida to build 
their new department and have gone from a staff of eleven paid to a staff of 63. He shared 
that their turnover rate is high due to their living conditions. When they bring in new families, 
living in apartments is something they are not use to . They are now at a 45% turnover rate. 
(28:00-30: 15) 

Chairman Klein: Your thought is with some sort of stability they won't just dump their house 
and move after you have given them the training to get the next job? 

Jason Catrambone: Correct, it would be a key piece to us. We train them very well and they 
are wanted throughout the country once we are done with them but having them locked into 
the community will be a way to help keep them but also gives them that ownership of the 
community and neighborhood that they start to build on. 

Jolene Kline, Executive Director, North Dakota Housing and Finance Agency: Written 
testimony, see attachment #5. Neutral Testimony. She said she thinks it is a good program 
but they need to make sure it fits within the Housing Incentive Fund right now. (32:15-37:55) 

Senator Casper: After your testimony, it looks like we have other programs in the state that 
are currently being conducted, what the difference is with this proposal and those would be. 
I am assuming those aren't tied into just essential service workers but it seems that there is 
a benefit out there for first time home buyers and other low and moderate income home 
buyers. Are we being duplicative here, do the essential workers qualify as low or moderate 
income home buyers that are getting some other benefit? 

Jolene Kline: There are programs out there but as I said, with our first home program, the 
expectation is that the borrower can't afford to finance 97% of that mortgage. She said that 
things would have to be worked out in this bill. (41 :00-42:53) 

Chairman Klein: Asked Jolene Klein if she will be working with Senator Bekkedahl to get 
some of the issues resolved so it will move down the hall. 

Jolene Kline: Mentioned SB 2192 that had already been passed out of the committee and 
stated that the bill strikes essential service workers and this bill references essential service 
workers . 

Chairman Klein: I read that, we took it out and now we are putting it back in but it's a 
separate bill . Our job here is to look at policy and we are hearing here that it may be good 
policy but not understanding the fine tuning and the dollars, if there are no dollars there is no 
reason for a policy. 
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Jolene Kline: Said that she visited with Legislative Council and they did bounce some 
mandatory language to century code that would add this as an eligible use. She did bring up 
the issue about the ten-year language in there and they said Senator Bekkedahl would have 
to bring that request to them. 

Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing and adjourned. 

Kim Schneider, Chief Executive Officer, North Dakota Banker's Association: Handed 
out testimony in support but did not testify, see attachment #6. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Establishment of an essential worker home ownership incentive program 

Minutes: Attachment 1-2 

Chairman Klein: Called the committee back to order. 

Senator Bekkedahl: Handed out amendments, see attachment #1 and #2. Senator 
Bekkedahl went over the Christmas tree version of the bill with the changes added. (:20-5:04) 

Chairman Klein: Are you good with what the changes are? 

Senator Bekkedahl: Absolutely, we recognize Jolene Kline's input and we respect her and 
everybody involved with the bill agreed to the changes she is requesting. 

Senator Casper: Was there any kind of clarity on if the incentive fund was only going to get 
x amount of dollars, if this would take the first four million? I just want some clarity on that. 

Senator Bekkedahl: That is an issue with us not understanding what appropriations would 
do, if the bill had a do pass recommendation from you and was rereferred. Then it would be 
dealt with in appropriations, not to take that away from your preview but we didn't know where 
appropriations would want to deal with that and how the Housing Finance Agency would deal 
with it either. The intent was if there was funding, the four million dollars would go into this. 

Chairman Klein: I think the idea here is that we have some concerns about the program and 
the cash flow and the cash. We all like multi-family units but we also have a desire to help 
fireman or policeman or whatever those essential workers are, so there is conflict here. 
Maybe our job is to do the best we can on the policy and see what the money is going to be 
because that probably is the biggest challenge on this thing. 

Senator Bekkedahl: I would agree. 

Chairman Klein: Asked for the wishes of the committee and said it needs to be moved 
through by next week. He thought this could have been put with the Housing Incentive Fund 
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that they moved down the hall, SB 2192. That way these would be together, I think this bill is 
a part of that fund. 

Discussion followed about whether or not this was a policy issue or for appropriations. It was 
also brought forth that the housing market has hit the bottom and should be going back up. 
Senator Roers brought up the possibility of this becoming a pilot program because there is a 
need for home living for essential workers. 

Chairman Klein: We can let this settle in, it is one of those more difficult ones. 

• 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Establishment of an essential worker home ownership incentive program 

Minutes: Attachments 1-2 

Chairman Klein: Called the committee to order. Senator Klein handed out an amended that 
was done for Senator Bekkedahl by legislative council and a map of the regions that would 
be covered by the assistance, see attachments #1 and #2. We are going to take the pilot 
program and we are going to change it from 4 million to 500,000. We are going to have it 
available in two quadrants, 1 and 8 which are in western North Dakota. You were given a 
picture of where those quadrants are. The discussion we had was rather than wade in here 
with four million dollars, maybe that's a little flush and it will certainly hurt the housing finance. 
They may be rolling that bill into the industrial commissions budget. The idea was to keep 
this thing alive by reducing it from four million to five hundred thousand dollars and it's an 
incentive fund and it would be only available in regions 1 and 8 with an even amount to each 
region. 

Senator Poolman moved to adopt the amendment, 17.0438.01004. 

Senator Campbell seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes-7 No-0 Absent-0 

Senator Poolman moved a do pass as amended and to rerefer to appropriations. 

Senator Casper seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes-7 No-0 Absent-0 

Senator Burckhard will carry the bill. 



17.0438.01004 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bekkedahl 

January 31, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2234 

Page 1, line 4, after the first semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 
54-17-40 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the housing incentive fund;" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "first ten years" with "term" 

Page 2, line 13, after "full" insert "or begin making amortized monthly payments on the 
secondary loan" 

Page 2, after line 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-17-40 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to 
address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may 
be used solely for: 

a. New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a multifamily housing 
project; 

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements; 

c. Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a 
loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market 
financing or to make the project feasible; a-00 

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive 
services designated to prevent homelessness: or 

e. Providing purchasing assistance for single-family residential mortgage 
loans by financing the essential service worker home ownership 
incentive fund." 

Page 2, line 26, after "appropriated" insert "or committed" 

Page 2, line 27, replace "$4,000,000" with "$500,000" 

Page 2, line 30, replace "$500,000" with "$250,000" 

Page 2, line 31, remove "each of the eight state" 

Page 2, line 31, after "regions" insert "one and eight" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0438.01004 



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2234 

Senate Industry, Business and Labor 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 17.0438.01004 

Date: 1/31/17 
Roll Call Vote#: 1 

Committee 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Recommendation: IZ! Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Senator Poelman Seconded By Senator Campbell 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Klein x Senator Marcellais x 
Vice Chairman Campbell x 
Senator Roers x 
Senator Burckhard x 
Senator Casper x 
Senator Poelman x 

Total (Yes) _? _ _________ No _o _____________ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2234 

Senate Industry, Business and Labor 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 17.0438.01004 

Date: 1/31/17 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

Committee 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

IZI Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
IZI As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
IZI Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Senator Poelman Seconded By Senator Casper 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Klein x Senator Marcellais x 
Vice Chairman Campbell x 
Senator Roers x 
Senator Burckhard x 
Senator Casper x 
Senator Poelman x 

Total 

Floor Assignment Burckhard 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
January 31, 2017 4:02PM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_19_011 
Carrier: Burckhard 

Insert LC: 17.0438.01004 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMIITEE 
SB 2234: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2234 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 4, after the first semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 
54-17-40 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the housing incentive fund;" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "first ten years" with "term" 

Page 2, line 13, after "full" insert "or begin making amortized monthly payments on the 
secondary loan" 

Page 2, after line 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-17-40 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to 
address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may 
be used solely for: 

a. New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a multifamily 
housing project; 

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements; 

c. Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for 
a loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary 
market financing or to make the project feasible; aA4 

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive 
services designated to prevent homelessness;__Q[ 

e. Providing purchasing assistance for single-family residential 
mortgage loans by financing the essential service worker home 
ownership incentive fund." 

Page 2, line 26, after "appropriated" insert "or committed" 

Page 2, line 27, replace "$4,000,000" with "$500,000" 

Page 2, line 30, replace "$500,000" with "$250,000" 

Page 2, line 31, remove "each of the eight state" 

Page 2, line 31, after "regions" insert "one and eight" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_ 19_011 



2017 SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 

SB 2234 



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2234 
2/13/2017 

Job# 28247 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the establishment of an essential service worker home ownership incentive 
program and essential service worker home ownership incentive fund. 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council: Adam Mathiak 
OMB: Becky Keller 

II Testimony Attached# 1 - 2. 

Chairman Holmberg: Called the committee to order on SB 2234. Roll call was taken. 

Senator Brad Bekkedahl, State Senator, District 1: Bill Sponsor. Testimony Attached# 1. 
We have previously promoted multi-family housing. This is a transition from multi-family to 
single-family for all service workers needed in the west. It was $16M and I amending it down 
to $500,000 pilot program. It has been patterned after Habitat for Humanity. If someone can't 
afford the home, they can get a secondary mortgage through this program. (2:48-5:39) 

Chairman Holmberg: It is said in places that pride goeth before the fall. Knowing how 
historically we've struggled with HIF (Housing Incentive Fund) with our colleagues in the 
House there will be some of this committee that will say we should make sure that this is part 
of the discussion towards the end of the session and there are times that these kinds of bills 
are rolled into a budget like the industrial commission where HIF is located . 

Senator Bekkedahl: This is a local bill where somebody is trying to make a difference for 
the people who she felt needed it. I know firsthand how the HIF budget works in terms of eh 
funding . I had the bill last session that funded HIF. 

Senator Kilzer: The $500,000 is that the only money that would be coming into the program 
or are there additional private money or from other sources? 

Senator Bekkedahl: That would be the only money coming to the program and I believe 
the bill also states that the housing finance agency may deduct a reasonable fee for 
administering the fund. As I read the bill there is no leverage monies coming into this. If I 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2234 
February 13, 2017 
Page 2 

could say the leverage money if you look at could be the original loan that's going to come • 
out with this as that would be the private leverage money through the loan establishments. 

Senator Mathern: On the fiscal note, do you think the policy agency felt that we didn't have 
the expertise to roll this out state wide or was it that they felt they were taking the role of the 
appropriation committee and saying it wasn't enough money? 

Senator Bekkedahl: The policy committee wanted the concept to go forward because they 
think it is a natural transition from the multi-family to get stability in single family housing. I 
think their recommendation was to look at a lower number and they wanted the 
appropriations to look at a different number. 

Senator Sorvaag: It's a secondary down payment and they are expected to repay it at an 
interest rate? I am trying to figure out how this helps that much except puts them deeper in 
debt? 

Senator Bekkedahl: First it gives them down payment money which eases the burden of 
the overall mortgage amount they have in the original mortgage. It's a payback and we are 
hoping that they develop a low interest rate attached to it. This would make some people not 
only qualify but being able to remain in the home without a significant burden over the 30% 
threshold we see sometimes for payments. 

Senator Sorvaag: The main lenders still don't look at this. It's still debt and they still have 
to be able to repay it unless we're basically giving it away. 

Senator Bekkedahl: They would still have to qualify for every loan that is out there including 
the secondary mortgage package that is in there. 

Senator Krebsbach: This is to supplement a down payment. The buyer would still have to 
put in some of his own money? 

Senator Bekkedahl: That's my understanding. It eases the burden long term on getting into 
the home so they can afford the payments long term. 

Senator G. Lee: They would really have two loans? 

Senator Bekkedahl: Dual loan status, obligation to both. They would be through the private 
sector. 

Jolene Kline, Executive Director, Housing Finance Agency, ND State Industrial 
Commission: Neutral testimony. Testimony Attached# 2. (12:39-18:54) 

Senator Sorvaag: How would you prioritize. This isn't a lot of money. You just gave an 
example that you would need $40,000 of it. So you have about six people in two sections • 
and about six people in the rest of the state. First come first serve? 

Jolene Kline: Those are things we have talked about internally and should this be only a 
particular occupation because of the limited amount of funding . This clearly gives us the 
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ability to set those guidelines. The way I see it is we would reach out to those local 
communities to find out what their most pressing need is. In reality it probably would be a first 
come first serve until the 250,000 is exhausted in regions 1 & 8. In the example I gave I used 
the 40,000, we may put a cap on it. What I don't want is this program to allow an essential 
service worker to buy more house than they need. If they're buying a $200,000 house they 
would qualify for 40,000 but you cap it at 20,000 per borrow to spread the money out. 

Senator Krebsbach: Would this program hold first mortgage on the loan, in the event they 
sold the house you would be first or how does that work? 

Jolene Kline: We'd hold both the first and the second . 

Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2234. 

Sub-committee: Senator Sorvaag, Senator Hogue and Senator Mathern. 
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JOB # 28426 (0.13.38-0.15.16) 

D Subcommittee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A DO NOT PASS regarding service worker home ownership incentive program. 

Minutes: 

JOB# 28426 - (0.01.01-0.12.20) IS FOR THE MINUTES ON SB 2014. 
JOB# 28426 - (0.12.21-0.13.38) IS FOR THE MINUTES ON SB 2192. 

Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2234. All committee members 
were present. Alex Cronquist, Legislative Council and Becky J . Keller, OMB were also 
present. This bill and SB 2192 are folded into SB 2014 so therefore no longer have a purpose 
to remain alive. 

Senator Sorvaag moved a Do Not Pass. 2nd by Senator Erbele. 

Chairman Holmberg: We have a motion and a second for a Do Not Pass on SB 2234. 
Would you call the roll on a Do Not Pass on SB 2234. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 14; Nay: O; Absent: 0. Senator Sorvaag will carry the 
bill. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2234. 



Date: ;>_ - IS 
Roll Call Vote#:--- ----

2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES d 1-

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ;}Lj 
Senate Appropriations 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation: 

Other Actions: 

D Adopt Ameneient 
D Do Pass ).\Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _ __..~.....,_·.....__.. ............ ....__4.,""""'"~-1---- Seconded By 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Holmberg y---- Senator Mathern y 

Vice Chair Krebsbach y Senator Grabinger 
Vice Chair Bowman Senator Robinson r 
Senator Erbele ;/" 

Senator Wanzek ,,...-
Senator Kilzer I 

Senator Lee ---Senator Dever r-
Senator Sorvaag ,__...,, 
Senator Oehlke y__ 
Senator Hogue y 

Total (Yes) 

Absent 

Floor Assignment s~~ 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly~::;:: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 15, 2017 4:19PM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_30_016 
Carrier: Sorvaag 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2234, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends DO NOT PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2234 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_30_016 
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Senate Industry, Business, and Labor Committee 
Honorable Senator Jerry Klein, Chairman 
Senate Bill 2234 
Testimony by Senator Brad Bekkedahl 

Chairman Klein and Committee, 

1/:J3/17 

Senate bill 2234 is a continuation of a bill proposal from the 2015 session that 
needed further refinement. It is an essential service worker home ownership 
incentive program, and involves providing assistance from the Housing Incentive 
Fund for a revolving loan program. With the substantial increase in multi-family 
housing inventory statewide, and particularly in western North Dakota, this pilot 
program could provide for essential workers to attain home ownership in our 
communities, securing them long term as community service assets. As 
proposed, the Housing Finance Agency would have to provide a revolving loan 
fund of four million dollars for the 2017-2019 biennium. Each of the eight regions 
of the state would receive an allocation of five hundred thousand dollars for 
applications. The qualification details and history of this proposal will be provided 
in supportive testimony by Ms. Joan Mainwaring, a real estate loan manager at 
American State Bank in Williston. With her 30 years of experience in lending here 
and other states, she will be very helpful in the committee's considerations. 

Jolene Kline, Executive Director of the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, 
informed me Friday that there exists a contradiction to this pilot program 
proposal in NDCC 54-17-40, which appears to limit the use of Housing Incentive 
Funds to multi-family projects only. With your permission Chairman Klein, I 
would ask for time to bring forth an amendment to correct that statute in th is bill 
as well, before final committee consideration and vote. 

Thank you for your attention today, and I will stand for any questions and then 
open the podium to further technical explanation and supportive testimony. 

#/ 



Bekkedahl, Brad 

SB 22 3<1 

Kline, Jolene A. 
Friday, January 20, 2017 8:29 AM 
Hatlestad, Patrick R.; Bekkedahl, Brad 

1/2il/17 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Wetz, Maximillian J.; Henderson, Jennifer A.; Fine, Karlene K. 
SB2234 

Senator Bekkedahl and Representative Hatlestad, 

Good Morning, 

SB 2234 was introduced too late for me to include as part of my legislative update to the Industrial Commission at their 
meeting on Tuesday of this week. As a result, any testimony I provide on Monday will need to be neutral. While we are 
fully supportive of the ESW homeownership incentive concept, the biggest concern I have is the funding transfer 
language. NDCC 54-17-40 paragraph 3. appears to limit use of HIF to multifamily only . NDCC 54-17-07 .2 de ines 
multifamily as four or more units. We have not had time to get input from our assistant attorney general but am 
interested in your views on how that potential transfer of funds from HIF fits within NDCC. 

Please give me a call or otherwise let me know if you want to visit on this. We are really open to increasing 
homeownership opportunities. 

Thanks, 

ne 

Jolene Kline 
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency 
Executive Director 
PO Box 1535 
2624 Vermont Avenue 
Bismarck ND 58502-1535 
jkline@nd .gov 
701-328-8072 
Cell 701-202-7059 

1 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Senate IBL Committee, 

Thank you for your willingness to take a moment of your time to consider 

SB 2234, a bill that is both an investment in people as well as a 

community. To solve problems we often need to consider a variety of 

approaches ("Skin a Cat"). We need to be innovated, creative, with a 

vision and a plan. We have it! SB 2234. Things slowing down? Maybe, 

somewhat, but not as much as you think. The needs for an essential 

workforce hasn't changed, it is still needed. Today, in times of tight 

budgets, we also need to be concerned with the return on investment of 

SB 2234. It's a great investment and will provide a great return. 

SB 2234 (a pilot program) is an Essential Service Worker Home 

Ownership Incentive Program funded by the State of ND, involving a 

special revolving fund at the Bank of North Dakota and administered by 

the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency. The program provides 

purchasing assistance, on a primary residence, for an Essential worker. 

The rules, regulations, requirements (income, sales price, max loan, are 

set by the NDHA aligned with other existing programs. An EW is defined 

on page 2 of the bill, lines 3-6. 

The assistance being offered is a LOAN not a grant. It will be PAID BACK. 

The State investment of $4 million is spread over 8 planning regions in 

the state (each with $500,000). 

ROI, yes; Innovative, yes; Creative, yes; Vision, yes; plan, yes; 

Vote Green on SB 2234. 

Thank you and I will stand for questions. However if you want the 

right/specific answers you may want to ask those waiting to testify who 

have the expertise. 
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TESTIMONY FOR SB 2234 

JANUARY 23, 2017 

FROM: JOAN MAINWARING 

AMERICAN STATE BANK & TRUST CO. 

CHAIRMAN JERRY KLEIN AND COMMITTEE 

Good morning to you all. It's my privilege to appear today to answer technical 

questions about this bill. 

This is a pilot program for our State that is a logical next step for our essential service 

workers. 
The Housing Incentive Fund for multi-family housing met a critical need for apartments 

statewide. Most would agree that the shortage has been resolved. 

In the last session, HB 1349 was a similar attempt, but was a General Fund request. 

Most in the Committee agreed it was a great idea and it was changed to a statewide 
program, but was voted down because of the money shortage. Although economic 

circumstances are different today, money shortages continue to be the number one 

obstacle. 

Today, we are asking our lawmakers to make another investment in our essential 
workforce by helping some of them buy a permanent home in our State. Apartment 

living is a great temporary answer, but most will want to marry and raise a family in 

their own home. 

All essential workforces in the State have grown in the past five years, and keeping 

these new workers is important to all of us. In the West, housing allowances are being 
phased out and overtime has been reduced. Although small raises have been approved 

to accommodate this change, it will regardless still be more expensive for that 
workforce to continue in their apartments. 

The challenge is to keep our workforce here in our State by assisting in finding a 
permanent housing solution. This program would help bridge the gap between what an 

essential service worker could qualify for, and the actual cost of a decent starter home. 

The help would be in the form of a silent second mortgage, very similar to the Habitat 

for Humanity program, at a low or no interest rate with no monthly payments to be 
repaid when the home is sold, refinanced, or the first mortgage has matured. Monies 
repaid to the program would be recycled to another family. 

We have reviewed this program idea with the Housing Finance Agency who would 

1 
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administer the program. They indicated the concept would work in tandem with their 
first mortgage program requirements. There would be sale price and income limits, as 
well as a cap on the individual maximum assistance amount. Workers would be free to 
choose their own home, new construction or existing, that would be limited to a one 

family unit and be owner occupied. 
Applicants would be free to apply to any lender approved to originate loans under 
NDHFA's programs. It is my hope that participating lenders and third parties such as 
appraisers and title companies would offer reduced fees to program recipients. 

Care was taken to address the possibility of program misuse, such as what happens if a 
recipient leaves essential service work after the loan is made. Each of our eight state 
planning regions would have their own pot of money, and the HFA would track their 
allocations. 
We have cut the request to 25% of what we started with to try to find a way to obtain 
approval. We estimate that the $500,000 per region will help approximately 10-20 
families into a home this biennium. 

The average new Police Officer's salary is about $55,000 in my area, allowing them to 
qualify for a home of $180,000 to $200,000. That price range in most areas is an older 
home that needs substantial updating. For many, their hours and limited income don't 
allow for that kind of home improvement to be made. The program would help the 
worker to obtain a more updated home. 

In my 35 plus years of residential lending, I have worked with similar programs in other 
states such as Section 8 to homeownership programs and Habitat for Humanity. This 
program is similarly designed to align with first mortgage lending requirements at 
Fannie Mae, FHA, USDA and VA. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration on this matter. It is my privilege to be 
here today to ask for your support. 

2 • 
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Jolene Kline Executive Director 

SB 2234 
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency 
Division of the State Industrial Commission 
Testimony of Jolene Kline, Executive Director 
Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee 

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION 

Doug Burgum Governor 

Wayne Stenehjem Attorney General 

Doug Goehring Agriculture Commissioner 

January 23, 2017 

Chairman Klein and members of the Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee: 

I am here in a neutral position on SB 2234. The North Dakota Housing Finance Agency is 

named as the administrator of the essential service worker home ownership incentive 

program and fund and I am here to provide a brief background on our homeownership 

activity. 

The Agency has homeownership programs for first-time and other low- and moderate-income 

homebuyers in North Dakota offered through participating lenders across the state. The 

loans are originated by local lenders and we are a secondary market for these loans. Unless 

a lender chooses to do so themselves, we also service the loans in-house. We offer down 

payment and closing cost assistance equal to 3 percent of the loan amount as an option to 

many of the borrowers receiving one of our mortgages. We are limited in the amount of 

assistance based on pre-payment of loans by borrowers and the financial capacity of the 

Agency. 

The Agency's FirstHome loan program has funded 40,831 loans totaling $3.17 billion, history 

to date. In 2016, purchases were 1,087 loans totaling $17 4.4 million. Eight-two percent of 

these loans received down payment assistance. 

Under the North Dakota Roots program, which is limited to low- and moderate-income 

homebuyers who are not first-time buyers, the Agency has purchased 768 loans totaling 

$132.9 million history to date. In 2016, 242 Roots loans were purchased totaling $48.5 

million. Eighty-seven percent of these loans received down payment assistance . 

2 . 1 
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To qualify for one of the second mortgages proposed under the essential service worker . 
homeownership incentive program, the borrower would need to have utilized one of the 

Agency's home loan programs. 

Qualifications under FirstHome are that the buyer must not have owned a home in the past 

three years and that they meet income restrictions which are based on county and family 

size. The purchase price of the home also must be within program limits. Under the Roots 

program, the buyer must meet income limits but there is no restriction on prior ownership. 

The home purchase price must comply with current Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac conforming 

loan amounts or the limits of the applicable loan insurer/guarantor. 

Obviously, we are very supportive of affordable and responsible homeownership 

opportunities. We support the concept being proposed in this bill which could help with the 

affordability gap issue faced by many potential homebuyers. 

Some of the issues that will need to be addressed include the repayment terms spelled out 

on Page 2, lines 10-13 may need to be clarified so that the program would not be in violation 

of the anti-gifting clause of the state Constitution. The loan could not be forgivable in its 

entirety and there would need to be expectation of repayment at some point. 

Second, the Housing Incentive Fund is identified as the funding source for this program. 

Century Code authorizing HIF requires that it be used for multifamily housing, which raises 

the question as to whether a transfer to this fund for single family homeownership would be a 

violation of that provision. 

Further, we question if the term "not otherwise appropriated" on line 26 would apply to HIF 

funds which have been conditionally committed. As I testified to this committee on Senate Bill 

2192 regarding extension of the HIF sunset date, we have funds in the HIF account which 

have been committed to projects but not yet disbursed. If no additional funding for HIF is 

approved by the legislature but the sunset date is extended, we question if we would be 

required to transfer those committed funds to this fund. 

Provided these points can be resolved , NDHFA has the experience and capacity to 

administer this program in an efficient and prudent manner. 

2 
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Testimony SB 2234 
Senate Industry, Business, Labor 

January 23, 2017 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Industry, Business and Labor 
committee, my name is Kim Schneider with the North Dakota 
Association of Builders (NDAB). At NDAB we represent over 2 ,000 
members across North Dakota including 6 local associations in 
Fargo, Grand Forks, Minot, Bismarck, Dickinson and Williston. 

NDAB submits this written testimony in Support of SB 2234. We 
understand the struggles that counties have in obtaining and 
retaining essential service workers. We strongly believe that SB 
2234 will help in allowing these valuable workers to own single 
family homes and establish a comfortable life in North Dakota. 

We thank you for your time and consideration of support of SB 
2234. 

If you should have any further questions, please feel free to contact 
me at my information below. 

Thank you, 

Kim Schneider 
Chief Executive Officer 
North Dakota Association of Builders 
701-222-2401 
kim@ndbuild.com 
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17.0438.01003 
Title. 

l/:JS/ 17 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bekkedahl 

January 24, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2234 

Page 1, line 4, after the first semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 
54-17-40 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the housing incentive fund;" 

Page 2, line 11 , replace "first ten years" with "term" 

Page 2, line 13, after "full" insert "or begin making amortized monthly payments on the 
secondary loan" 

Page 2, after line 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-1 7-40 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to 
address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may 
be used solely for: 

a. 

b. 

c . 

d . 

e. 

New construction , rehabilitation , or acquisition of a multifamily housing 
project; · 

Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements; 

Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a 
loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market 
financing or to make the project feasible ; afl€i 

Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive 
services designated to prevent homelessness: or 

Providing purchasing assistance to single-family residential mortgage 
loans by financing the essential service worker home ownership 
incentive fund ." 

Page 2, line 26, after "appropriated" insert "or committed" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0438.01003 
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17.0438.01003 

Sixty-fifth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Senator Bekkedahl 

Representative Hatlestad 

1/:25/17 

SENATE BILL NO. 2234 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 54-17-07.3 and a new section 

2 to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the establishment of an 

3 essential service worker home ownership incentive program and essential service worker home 

4 ownership incentive fund; to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 54-17-40 of the North 

5 Dakota Century Code. relating to the housing incentive fund; to provide an appropriation and 

6 transfer; and to provide a continuing appropriation. 

7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

8 SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 54-17-07 .3 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

9 created and enacted as follows: 

10 Essential service worker home ownership incentive program. A program to provide 

11 assistance for the purchase of a primary residence by an essential service worker as 

12 provided in section 2 of this Act. The program may provide a secondary mortgage lien 

13 to assist in the acquisition of a single-family residential dwelling unit. 

14 SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

15 and enacted as follows: 

16 Essential service worker home ownership incentive fund - Continuing appropriation. 

17 L The essential service worker home ownership incentive fund is created as a special 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

revolving fund at the Bank of North Dakota. The housing finance agency may direct 

disbursements from the fund and moneys in the fund are appropriated on a continuing 

basis to provide purchasing assistance on single-family residential mortgage loans 

under the essential worker home ownership incentive program. The agency shall 

administer and supervise the fund and may deduct a reasonable fee for administering 

the fund. 

Page No. 1 17.0438.01003 
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Sixty-fifth 
Legislative Assembly 

1 2..:. During the 2017-19 biennium, the essential service worker home ownership incentive 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

fund must be used to support a pilot program for essential service workers. The fund 

must be used to provide purchasing assistance under the essential service worker 

home ownership incentive program in any area of the state. For purposes of this 

section, "essential service worker" means an individual employed by the state or a city, 

county, school district. medical or long-term care facility, or any other individual 

emgloyed in providing an essential public service as determined by the housing 

finance agency. 

9 ~ Pursuant to housing finance agency underwriting and credit standards and guidelines 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

adopted under subsection 4, the agency may provide a secondary loan to a qualified 

essential service worker in conjunction with a single-family residential mortgage loan 

originated by a lender under a housing finance agency home ownership program. If. at 

any time during the first ten yearsterm of the loan. the borrower ceases to be 

emgloyed as an essential service worker or if the borrower sells the home or 

refinances the mortgage loan, the borrower must repay the secondary loan in full or 

begin making amortized monthly payments on the secondary loan. 

17 4. The agency shall adopt guidelines for the implementation and administration of the 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

essential service worker home ownership incentive program. The guidelines must 

provide the moneys in the essential service worker home ownership incentive fund 

may be used solely to assist in the acquisition of owner-occupied single-family 

residential housing that will serve as the primary residence of the essential service 

worker. The guidelines must establish income limits for eligibility to participate in the 

program and purchase price limitations as determined appropriate by the agency. 

24 ~ Any funds received in repayment or recapture of a loan under this section must be 

25 deposited in the essential service worker home ownership incentive fund and may be 

26 used for the purposes of the essential service worker home ownership incentive 

27 program. 

28 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-17-40 of the North Dakota Century 

29 Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

30 

31 

3. The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to address 

unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may be used solely for: 

Page No. 2 17.0438.01003 
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a. New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a multifamily housing project; 

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements; 

c. Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a loan using 

underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market financing or to make the 

project feasible;-aAE! 

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive services 

designated to prevent homelessness; or 

e. Providing purchasing assistance to single-family residential mortgage loans by 

financing the essential service worker home ownership incentive fund. 

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 

the housing incentive fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated or committed, the 

sum of $4,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, which the office of 

management and budget shall transfer to the essential service worker home ownership 

incentive fund for the purposes identified in section 2 of this Act, for the biennium beginning July 

1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. The housing finance authority shall disburse $500,000 of 

the amount appropriated under this section within each of the eight state planning regions. 

Page No. 3 17.0438.01003 
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17.0438.01004 
Title. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bekkedahl 

January 25, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2234 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 
54-17-40 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the housing incentive fund ;" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "first ten years" with "term" 

Page 2, line 13, after "full" insert "or begin making amortized monthly payments on the 
secondary loan" 

Page 2, after line 24, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 54-17-40 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

3. The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to 
address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may 
be used solely for: 

a. 

b. 

c . 

d. 

e. 

New construction, rehabilitation , or acquisition of a multifamily housing 
project; 

Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements; 

Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a 
loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market 
financing or to make the project feasible; afl€l 

Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive 
services designated to prevent homelessness; or 

Providing purchasing assistance to single-family residential mortgage 
loans by financing the essential service worker home ownership 
incentive fund ." 

Page 2, line 26, after "appropriated" insert "or committed" 

Page 2, line 27 , replace "$4,000,000" with "$500,000" 

Page 2, line 30, replace "$500,000" with "$250,000" 

Page 2, line 31, remove "each of the eight state" 

Page 2, line 31, after "regions" insert "one and eight" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0438.01004 
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Senate Appropriations Committee February 13, 2017 
Honorable Senator Ray Holmberg, Chairman 
Senate Bill 2234 ff/ 
Testimony by Senator Brad Bekkedahl 

Chairman Holmberg and Committee, 

Senate bill 2234 is a continuation of a bill proposal from the 
2015 session that needed further refinement. It is an essential 
service worker home ownership incentive program, and 
involves providing a continuing appropriation to the Housing 
Incentive Fund for a revolving loan program. With the 
substantial increase in multi-family housing inventory 
statewide, and particularly in western North Dakota, this pilot 
program could provide for essential workers to attain home 
ownership in our communities, securing them long term as 
community service assets. As currently amended, the Housing 
Finance Agency would have to provide a revolving loan fund of 
five hundred thousand dollars appropriated for the 2017-2019 
biennium. In this pilot program, regions 1 and 8 of the state 
would receive an allocation of two hundred fifty thousand 
dollars for applications. The qualification details and history of 
this proposal was provided in supportive testimony by Ms. Joan 
Mainwaring, a real estate loan manager at American State Bank 
in Williston. With her 30 years of experience in lending here 
and other states, she was very helpful in the Policy Committee's 
considerations and Do Pass recommendation . 

{ 



Mr. Chairman, Section 2 of the bill provides for the creation 
of the special revolving loan fund at the Bank of North Dakota. 
It also provides for the appropriation of the $500,000 for the 
next biennium to be a continuing appropriation, and directs the 
Housing Finance Agency (Agency) to administer and supervise 
the revolving loan fund. This section also requires the Housing 
Finance Agency to adopt guidelines, including establishing 
income limits for eligibility to participate and purchase price 
limitations as determined appropriate by the Agency. 
Additional language in Section 3 provides the Agency the ability 
to provide purchasing assistance for single-family residential 
mortgage loans financed by the fund as an authorized program 
for the Agency. Section 4 is the appropriation language in the 
amount of $500,000, with the pilot program to be used in 
Regions 1 and 8 to start with, where affordable housing has 
been most critical in the rapid development of the Bakken 
formation. Each of the two listed Regions would have $250,000 
in allocations in the bill. It should be noted that in the original 
bill discussion, there was to be a request for $16 million 
statewide to initiate the program. What you have before you 
now is an attempt to reduce that appropriation, but also 
initiate the program as a pilot to give the agency time to 
develop appropriate guidelines, and monitor its 
implementation and effectiveness prior to any statewide 
consideration. 

Mr. Chairman and Committee, thank you for your attention 
and consideration today, and I will stand for any questions you 

may have. • 



SB 2234 
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency 
Division of the State Industrial Commission 
Testimony of Jolene Kline, Executive Director 
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Jolene Kline Executive Director 

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION 
Doug Burgum Governor 

Wayne Stenehjem Attorney General 
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February 13, 2017 

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee: 

I am here in a neutral position on SB 2234. The North Dakota Housing Finance Agency is 

named as the administrator of the essential service worker home ownership incentive 

program and fund and I am here to provide a brief background on our homeownership 

activity. 

The Agency has homeownership programs for first-time and other low- and moderate-income 

homebuyers in North Dakota offered through participating lenders across the state. The 

loans are originated by local lenders and we are a secondary market for these loans. Unless 

a lender chooses to do so themselves, we also service the loans in-house. We offer down 

payment and closing cost assistance equal to 3 percent of the loan amount as an option to 

many of the borrowers receiving one of our mortgages. We are limited in the amount of down 

payment assistance based on pre-payment of loans by borrowers and the financial capacity 

of the Agency. 

The Agency's FirstHome loan program has funded 40,831 loans totaling $3.17 billion, history 

to date. In 2016, purchases were 1,087 loans totaling $174.4 million. Eight-two percent of 

these loans received down payment assistance. 

Under the North Dakota Roots program, which is limited to low- and moderate-income 

homebuyers who are not first-time buyers, the Agency has purchased 768 loans totaling 

$132.9 million history to date. In 2016, 242 Roots loans were purchased totaling $48.5 

million. Eighty-seven percent of these loans received down payment assistance. 
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To qualify for one of the second mortgages proposed under the essential service worker 

homeownership incentive program, the borrower would need to have utilized one of the 

Agency's home loan programs. 

Qualifications under FirstHome are that the buyer must not have owned a home in the past 

three years and that they meet income restrictions which are based on county and family 

size. The purchase price of the home also must be within program limits. Under the Roots 

program, the buyer must meet income limits but there is no restriction on prior ownership. 

The home purchase price must comply with current Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac conforming 

loan amounts or the limits of the applicable loan insurer/guarantor. 

Obviously, we are very supportive of affordable and responsible homeownership 

opportunities. NDHFA has the experience and capacity to administer this proposed program 

in an efficient and prudent manner if this legislation is approved . 
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